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1. SOLICITATION No. 19-016 2. AMENDMENT No. 1 3. EFFECTIVE DATE:  06/12/2019 

4. ISSUED BY:  Lisa Harris, Contracts Specialist  
Direct Dial: (863) 327-1314   Email: LHarris@ridecitrus.com 

5. NUMBER OF PAGES:  11 

6. REVISED SUBMISSION DUE DATE AND TIME: The submission due date and time is changed as follows: 
DATE AND TIME:    No Change 

7. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION: 
The solicitation identified in Block 1, is hereby amended as described in Block 10.  Except as provided herein, 
all other provisions of the solicitation, as hereto amended, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

8. REQUIREMENT TO ACKNOWLEDGE AMENDMENT: 
Failure of an offeror to acknowledge receipt of this amendment may result in offer rejection.  Offeror must 
acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the deadline specified in the solicitation for receipt of offers and 
by one of the following methods: 

A. By signing Block 10 and returning this amendment to the District with your Proposal; 
B. By separate letter or e-mail which includes a reference to this solicitation and amendment numbers. 
 

9. OFFEROR’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF AMENDEMENT: 
 

Name & Title: _____________________________ Signature: ____________________________________ 
 

      Offeror:          _______________________________________________________  Date: ____/____/____ 

10. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT:  The following modifications are hereby made to the solicitation document: 
 

A. As indicated in Block 6 above, the Offer Submission Due Date and Time has not changed: 

B. Replace the “system map” link reference in Section 1.1, Background with the below link. 
http://ridecitrus.com/routes/ 
 

C. Update Section 2.2, Statement of Work, paragraph 1 to reflect the following edits: 
 
The objective is to have a Contracted Service Provided (CSP) deliver public transportation services to the 
patrons of North Eastern Polk County. The services currently exist of two fixed/express routes one flex 
routes, and one non-demand response route. The CSP will be responsible for dispatching three of the 
four routes and working collectively effectively communicating with the Districts Call Center on the 
reporting of request for services, ridership information, accident and incident, etc. the demand response 
route. Services are currently provided by the Central Florida Regional Transportation Authority or LYNX, 
through a contract with the District.  
 

D. Strike the requirement in Section 2.5 D, mandating vehicles be equipped with seat belts for all positions 
and incorporate the following language in its place. 
 
Vehicles shall be equipped with seat belts as mandated by Florida Statutes 316.613 and 316.614, including 
any revision thereof.   
 

E. Replace Attachment 03- Price Schedule, in its entirety, with the Amended Attachment 03- Price Schedule. 
 
 
 

http://ridecitrus.com/routes/
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F. Incorporate Exhibit 4 – Ridership Reports into section 2.10 of the solicitation. 

 
G. All changes to the solicitation are referenced in paragraph A, through F. 

 
H. Attached to this amendment are Questions and Clarification. Responses to questions are provided as a 

courtesy and do not “modify” the solicitation. 
 
 
 
 

[END] 
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1. Question: I tried accessing the system map and it comes back stating not found. Is there another link to see the 
route? 

Response: Yes, the District provides the link under box 10, paragraph B, of the accompanying Amendment 1 to the 
solicitation. Said reference replaces the “system map” link in Section 1.1, with the following link. 
http://ridecitrus.com/routes/. 

2. Question: For non-ADA demand response and demand-response services, is Citrus Connection interested in 
responses that propose an app-based, on-demand service model? Under such a model, customers would request 
rides in real-time using a mobile application. Such a model would continue supporting over the phone, pre-scheduled 
reservations. 

Response: The use of an “app-based, on-demand service model” is not a requirement of the solicitation. Offerors 
that wish to document the availability of such services may provide the information as part of the technical 
proposal. Any associated fees should be listed as an “Optional Item” within the Amended Attachment 03 - Price 
Schedule. 

3. Question: Is the District open to using non-employee drivers where legal and appropriate? These drivers, for 
example, could be 1099 contractors that drive a designated fleet of branded vehicles, held exclusively for use by 
Citrus Connection. Using contractor drivers allows for more flexibility in the labor model and a consequent scale up 
and down of vehicles to match demand throughout the day. This operating efficiency generally reduces deadhead 
hours and vehicles required, reducing the cost to the District. 

Response: No, non-employee drivers would conflict with Rule Chapter 14-90 of the Florida Administrative Code, as 
required by the Florida Department of Transportation. 

4. Question: Is the District interested in integrated technology solutions that coordinate between multiple modes of 
transit (ie., fixed-route, demand response, and flex-route)? Such a solution could enable Citrus Connections to 
provide connections between various modes to increase overall system efficiency 

Response: No, the District is not looking for integrated technology under this solicitation. However, Offerors that 
wish to document the availability of such application or services may provide the information as part of the 
technical proposal. Any associated fees should be listed as an “Optional Item” within the Amended Attachment 03 - 
Price Schedule. 

5. Question: Section 2.2 states: “The CSP will be responsible for dispatching three of the four routes and working 
collectively with the Districts Call Center on the demand response route.” Can Citrus Connection clarify what 
collective management of the demand-response route entails? Which elements of service will the Contractor be 
responsible for providing? 

Response: The District provides clarification under box 10, paragraph C, of the accompanying Amendment 1 – to 
the solicitation. 

6. Question: Since LYNX provides the service today, it would seem LYNX owns the current vehicles in use. It does not 
appear that the District will be providing any fleet for services.  Is this a correct statement?  If the vendor is to procure 
fleet will District be open to 3,1,1 or 5 year fixed contract to improve the pricing models for procured fleet? Are there 
any funding sources being used which will require Buy America considerations? 

Response: As per section 2.5B, paragraph a of the solicitation, offerors shall “provide a list of all vehicles that may 
be used to transport District patrons”. Said list was requested to demonstrate the CSP’s ability to provide the 
services as outlined within the statement of work.  

Whereas District vehicles will not be utilized under the impending agreement, Buy America requirements do not 
apply. 

The contract terms, as stated in section 1.9 of the solicitation, were chosen as this is the District’s first time 
competitively bidding the services requested. Should firms with to offer a multiyear discount, the option must be 
provided as part of the Offerors submittal and outlined within the Amended Attachment 3 – Price Schedule

http://ridecitrus.com/routes/
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7. Question: What size seating capacity is currently in use today and what type of fleet recommendations is District 
suggesting to support the current ridership for the routes? 

Response: The seating capacity being provided under the LYNX contract varies by route. Currently the service is 
being provided by two 40’ gillig buses on route 427, one 30’ gillig bus on route 416, and one 16 seat cutaway on 
route 603. 

As stated in section 2.5B, paragraph a of the solicitation, offerors shall “provide a list of all vehicles that may be 
used to transport District patrons”. Said list was requested to demonstrate the CSP’s ability to provide the services 
as outlined within the statement of work. For this reason, the District shall not make fleet recommendations. 

8. Question: Is there a farebox amount in use today?  If yes, does the vendor need to provide the equipment for 
farebox?  What is the current or proposed rate of farebox? Does District want to use voucher or fare cards? Is there 
the potential or need for transfers between LYNX and District? 

Response: The current farebox rates are $1.50 adult, $1.25 students, $0.75 Seniors, $0.75 disabled, $2.00 
paratransit. The Passes are one day adult pass $3.00; student day pass $2.50, weekly pass $12.00, and monthly pass 
$47.00.  Senior or Disabled day pass $1.50, weekly $9.00, and monthly $31.50.  

Cash and fare cards may be used for the routes in which service is being requested. Fare cards shall be provided by 
the District and in accordance with section 2.9 of the solicitation, all fares shall be deducted from the monthly 
billing as service revenue. The use of cash and fare cards shall eliminate the need for additional equipment. 

9. Question: 427X doesn't explicitly state the need for two vehicles but the hours appear that you want two vehicles M-
F and one vehicle only for Saturday services.  Is this a correct statement? 

Response: Currently the 427x is utilizing two buses. However, as stated in section 2.5B, paragraph a of the 
solicitation, offerors shall “provide a list of all vehicles that may be used to transport District patrons”. Said list was 
requested to demonstrate the CSP’s ability to provide the services as outlined within the statement of work. For 
this reason, the District shall not make fleet recommendations. 

10. Question: Will ridership be used for National Database Reporting?  If yes, will the vendor be responsible for 
providing the equipment?  Will the vendor or will District be reporting the collected data for annual NTD?  Does 
District want automated software for reporting purposes? 

Response: The District is required to provide ridership to the NTD. The reporting requirements outlined in section 
2.8 of the solicitation shall be used, in part, to meet this obligation.  

The District is not looking for integrated technology under this solicitation, however, Offerors that wish to 
document the availability of such application or services may provide the information as part of the technical 
proposal. Any associated fees should be listed as an “Optional Item” within the Amended Attachment 03 - Price 
Schedule. 

11. Question: For fixed route services, will verbal announces be considered satisfactory for the purposes of meeting 
ADA requirements or does District want an automated process? 

Response: Verbal announcements meet the ADA requirement. 

12. Question: Will ADA demand response be limited to DOT distance standards? 

Response: The routes for which service is being requested, as outlined in section 2.4 of the solicitation, are 
express, Non-ADA Demand Response Routes. However, should a demand response route be implemented under 
this service agreement, the distance would be ¾ of a mile from the fixed route. 

13. Question: It appears our employees would be part of the District Drug and Alcohol pool.  Will District be providing 
contractor current pricing rates or is this expense considered in-kind?  Will District serve as the DAPM or are you 
open to solutions which do not require District to serve as DAPM?   

Response: As per section 2.4D of the solicitation, “the CSP will be responsible for meeting all Federal Transit 
Administration requirements, including but not limited to, MIS Drug and Alcohol reporting, CDL compliance, and 
FTA rules and regulations”.  Also see section 6, form G of the solicitation: Drug Free Workplace Certification. 



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

14. Question: Are there any services offered which will be considered in kind?  maintenance, vehicle washing, office or 
parking space, training, etc? In the contractor required or encouraged to work with any existing District operations 
supporting the region? 

Response: No service requested under this solicitation shall be considered in-kind. 

15. Question: Does the District have an existing service animal or comfort animal policy? 

Response: Yes, the District has such a policy. A service animal means any guide dog, signal dog or other animal 
individually trained to  work or perform tasks for an individual with disability, including, but not limited to guiding 
individuals with impaired vision, alerting individuals with impaired hearing to intruders  or sounds, providing 
minimal protection or rescue work, pulling wheelchair, or fetching dropped items. 

Service animals are animals that are individually trained to perform tasks for people with disabilities. A transit 
entity may ask if an animal is a service animal or ask what tasks the animal has been trained to perform but cannot 
require special ID cards for the animal or ask about the person’s disability. A service may not be excluded unless the 
animal is out of control, or the animal poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others. Assumptions about 
how particular animal is likely to behave, based on experience with the animals, are not a factor. 

16. Question: Does the District have an existing firearms policy for riders? 

Response: The District has an Active Shooter Policy, not a firearm policy for patrons. 

17. Question: Will the District consider a capacity limit regarding weight limits for lift vehicles if smaller fleet is 
suggested? 

Response: The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) mandates that the ramps on wheelchair vans must support a 
600-pound minimum total weight limit — including the individual, the wheelchair, and any accompanying 
accessories (oxygen tank or portable respirator). 

18. Question: What logo formats are available by the District for vehicle markings?  

Response: The logo shall be provided in EPS, JPEG, and/or PDF format. The District’s branding guide shall be 
provided to the intended awardee.   

19. Question: Does District have an existing operational phone number for call scheduling purposes, or will the 
contractor need to provide a new number?  Can the existing number be "forwarded" for services? 

Response: The District does not currently have a dedicated line for the routes to be serviced under this 
agreement. As per box 10, paragraph C, of the accompanying Amendment 1, the Contracted Service Provider will 
be responsible for dispatching all routes. Said dispatching shall include the acquirement of a new number as 
necessary. 

20. Question: For insurance purposes, we do not employee drivers under the age of 24 years old. Will this standard be 
acceptable to the District? 

Response: The District’s employee requirements are outlined within sections 2.6 and 2.7 of the solicitation. Any 
other provisions shall be at the Offeror’s discretion. 

21. Question: What is the hourly rate Lynx currently charges? 

Response: The current hourly service rates are $42.87 an hour for route 603 and $70.56 an hour for routes 416 
and 427. 

22. Question: Can a fuel escalator clause be included, or fuel be invoiced as a direct pass through to LAMTD? 

Response: See section 2.11 for the pricing/fee structure, specifically section 2.11E for the Price Escalation/De-
escalation requirements. 

23. Question: Please provide the last 12 months ridership statistics for each route. 

Response: See attached Exhibit 4 – Ridership Reports 
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24. Question: What is the vehicle type(s) used by Lynx to provide services currently? 

Response: The LYNX service is being provided by two 40’ gillig buses on route 427, one 30’ gillig bus on route 416, 
and one 16 seat cutaway on route 603. 

25. Question: What limitations are there (if any) for users requesting non-ADA on demand rides? 

Response: This service is provided on a first call first severed basis. Once a bus is fully booked the rider must 
schedule on next available route. 

26. Question: What is the response time expectation (if any) for requests of the non-ADA on demand rides? 

Response: The District’s demand response has a 2-hour turnaround time. 

27. Question: How many non-ADA on demand rides were performed last year for this particular service? 

• How many miles in total were ran? 

Response: See attached Exhibit 4 – Ridership Reports 

28. Question: What is the counties preferred method of collection of fares?  

Response: As stated in the response to question 8: Cash and fare cards may be used for the routes in which 
service is being requested. Fare cards shall be provided by the District and in accordance with section 2.9 of the 
solicitation, all fares shall be deducted from the monthly billing as service revenue. The use of cash and fare cards 
shall eliminate the need for additional equipment. 

29. Question: What technology (if any) such as fare media and fare boxes, will be made accessible to the provider for 
collection of fares? 

Response: See the District’s response to Questions 8 and 28 above. 

30. Question: Section 2.5 (D) states that “Vehicles shall be equipped with seat belts for all positions including drivers”. 
Passenger seat belts are not standard equipment on transit buses. Please explain this requirement.  

Response: The District provides clarification under box 10, paragraph D, of the accompanying Amendment 1 – to 
the solicitation. 

31. Question: The price schedule summary, Attachment 3 appears to only be for the initial 1 year term. Should we 
duplicate the form for pricing on the 3 x 1-year options? 

Response: The Price Schedule reflects a single year to accommodate the price escalation/de-escalation clause 
outlined in section 2.11E of the solicitation. 

32. Question: Is the option year pricing bound by the formula noted in 2.11 (E)? 

Response: The District has successfully implemented the formula found in section 2.11E in the past. However, 
“exception may be taken” and an alternate calculation suggested, as outlined in section 5.6 of the solicitation. 

33. Question: Section 3.18 (B) Administrative Charges: Has the current contract been charged? If so, please explain, 
and please provide an example where this would apply. 

Response: To date, no administrative charges have been assessed in conjunction with a contract of this type. 
However, section 3.18B would be enforced should the contractor failed to perform, and the District incur cost in 
making alternate service provisions. 

34. Question: since many of the operational costing elements are new to the District, would it be possible to bid using a 
cost-plus model? Without past driver performance and historically costing models an hourly rate will be difficult to 
provide the best rate possible for the District.  A cost plus would allow us to bid a fixed indirect and profit and only bill 
the rest of the expenses to the District based on actually expenses. 

Response: As per Attachment 2, section 4(c), Cost-plus percentage of cost contracts are prohibited by federal law. 
Additionally, as per section 2.11, Pricing offered shall be entered into, and submitted on, the Price Schedule 
provided by the District as (Amended) Attachment 3 to the solicitation. Pricing shall be provided as an all-inclusive 
firm fixed fee. 
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35. Question: Would the District explain which, exactly, licenses and certifications proposers would need to hold in order 
to be responsive? 

Response: As per section 3.15 of the solicitation, Offerors are presumed to be licensed to do business in the state 
of Florida and be familiar with all Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations that may in 
any way affect the goods or services offered. 

36. Question: Since Florida would be a new market for our company, may we furnish the District with all of our licenses 
and certifications upon notification of receipt of award (but prior to contract execution)? 

Response: As per section 1.3 of the solicitation, Firms submitting an offer must firmly demonstrate their capability 
to satisfy the requirements under this solicitation and resulting contract while maintaining industry standard 
licenses and certifications as may be required elsewhere within the solicitation and by the state of Florida. Such 
documentation must be provided to be deemed responsive and responsible. 

37. Question: Does the schedule of values mentioned in Section 3 apply to this contract, as it’s not a construction 
contract? 

Response: The Schedule of Values referenced in Section 5B(c), “Section 3 – Project Approach or Work Plan” is 
utilized in a blanket statement and specifies that it would only apply to construction contracts. Subparagraph (4) 
specifically states “should a schedule of values be requested”, said document is not requested. 

38. Question: In order for us to carefully model required vehicles, can the District please provide us with daily or weekly 
ridership data for all requested transportation modes? Can you also include utilization, defined as passengers per 
vehicle hour? 

Response: See attached Exhibit 4 – Ridership Reports 

39. Question: Could the District provide additional information on the current fleet vehicles in use for Routes 70 and 
603? 

Response: Please refer to the vehicles, rates, and ridership provided in questions 7, 8, 21, 24 and 38. 

40. Question: We understand the District has requested an organizational chart in all responses. Our company has over 
500 employees; an organizational chart that included all of them would be difficult to comprehend. May we submit an 
organizational chart of the relevant business unit and staff for this project? 

Response: Yes, as per section 5B(b), “Section 2 – Qualifications”, the last sentence under subparagraph (5), 
specifically states that we are looking for “personnel that are to perform any services under the solicitation”. 

41. Question: With regards to the District’s required Exhibit 2 - Inventory Form, may we submit an illustrative list instead 
of exact vehicles? (In our case, most of the vehicles we use are likely to be brand new, and thus not plated, etc. at 
this time.) 

Response: As shown on page 2 of the Solicitation Overview, Exhibit 2 - Inventory List is a required document. 
However, “exception may be taken” and an alternate list suggested, as outlined in section 5.6 of the solicitation. 

42. Question: Will the District accept proposals where the asset base (ie, vehicles) are leased for the explicit purpose of 
this service? 

Response: The section 2.5 of the solicitation provides the Vehicle Equipment Standards. Those standards do not 
require vehicle ownership.  

43. Question: Because we do not yet have operations in Florida, may we provide the District with our local office 
location after notice of award but before contract execution? 

Response: As per section 5.2, 5.4, and 5.8 that we are looking for said information to be disclosed as part of the 
Offerors submittal. 

44. Question: Could the District provide information on the expected service launch date? 

Response: The District anticipates executing the Contract Award in July with a October 1, 2019 service 
implementation/start date. 
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45. Question: Are any of the routes considered paratransit? 

Response: No, we are currently requesting service for 2 fixed routes, 1 flex route, and 1 ride share/demand 
response route of which is not considered paratransit. 

46. Question: What software is currently being utilized by the District? 

Response: The District currently utilizes Trapeze and Avail for its operational services. 

47. Question: Do you require the contractor’s vehicles to be wrapped? 

Response: Contractor vehicles are not required to be wrapped; however, they must have identifying signage. For 
example, a magnetic sign with the District’s logo would be acceptable. 

48. Question: Are service vehicles required to be parked or housed at a particular location?  

Response: No, the District has no such requirement. 

49. Question: Does the District have any of its employees assigned to these routes? 

Response: No, the services being provided and/or requested are all inclusive. The District staff will not be made 
available. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 [END] 

 

 

 



Line 
Item Description of Supply/Service Est. Annual 

Service Hrs

1 Route 416X Haines City / Davenport / Poinciana Express 3,556.00  $ $ -                       
2 Route 427X Haines City / U.S. 27 Express 6,916.27  $ $ -                       
3 Route 603 Southwest Poinciana - Non-ADA Demand Response 4,273.82  $ $ -                       
4 Route  70 Loughman Flex 3,014.13  $ $ -                       

Total Base Terms $ -                      

Line 
Item Description of Supply/Service Optional 

Service Hours

5 Hourly weekday only rate (Monday - Friday) 1 $ $ -                       
6 Hourly weekends only rate (Saturday) 1 $ $ -                       
7 Hourly combination rate (Monday - Saturday) 1 $ $ -                       
10 Hourly ADA or Non-ADA Demand Response weekday only rate (Mon - Fri) 1 $ $ -                       
11 Hourly ADA or Non-ADA Demand Response combination rate (Mon - Sat) 1 $ $ -                       

Total Option Terms $ -                      

Line 
Item Description of Supply/Service

Optional 
Service Hours 

or Quantity

Total Optional Items $ -                      

Optional Items shall be given seperate consideration TOTAL BASE + OPTION TERMS $ -                    
Notes:

   Name & Title of Offeror’s Representative:        Signature & Date:

____/____/____

(Print or Type Name & Title)  (Signature of Offeror’s Representative)   (Date)

*CAUTION: A false statement in any offer submitted to the District may be a criminal OFFENSE.

OPTION TERMS PRICING

Unit Price Extended Rate

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ABOVE, THE UNDERSIGNED AGREES IF THIS OFFER IS ACCEPTED WITHIN 90 DAYS FROM QUOTE 
DUE DATE, TO FURNISH ANY OR ALL ITEMS FOR WHICH PRICES ARE OFFERED ABOVE AT THE PRICE (S) OFFERED, 

DELIVERED AT DESIGNATED POINT (S), WITHIN THE TIME PERIOD SPECIFIED.

Attachment 3 - Price Schedule Summary

The line item unit price(s) must include all costs that the offeror intends to recover, such as, but not limited to:  supervision, labor, 
equipment, materials, vehicle licensing, vehicle title, warehousing, freight, pick-up, financing, carrying charges, and all other such charges 

to accommodate the supplies/services and delivery requirements, all overhead and fee or profit.

No price adjustments will be made, unless specifically provided for by an additional provision included in this contract.    

BASE TERMS PRICING

Hourly Rate Annual Rate

OPTIONAL ITEMS

Unit Price Extended Rate

12 Other (please specify)

-                       13 Other (please specify)

$ $ -                       

$

$ $

$ -                       

14 Other (please specify) $ $ -                       

15 Other (please specify)



Exhibit 4 - Ridership Reports
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